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Our Vision

QEC’s vision is for our children to get the best start in life.

Our Purpose

QEC helps young children living in vulnerable situations get the best start in

life, by providing families with specialised services, guidance and education.

Our Values

RESPECT:
We respect the feelings and beliefs of others

TEAMWORK:
We listen to, acknowledge and accept others in our team
INTEGRITY:
We approach others with fairness, honesty and openness
EXCELLENCE:
We strive for excellence and quality in everything we do
RESILIENCE:
We are positive in our approach to all challenges
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Executive
Report

I write this on my return from a week with the
community at Fitzroy Crossing – reflection, inspiration,
challenge. So much of what we do at QEC has parallels
with this community. The passion, respect, tenacity,
determination, creativity, optimism and hope evident in
their partnerships are a model for QEC.
Dynamic environments might try us – but they also push
us to find creative solutions to old and new issues and
opportunities. The team at QEC embraces and invests in
that. And this year we have some outcomes to share
with you that clearly illustrate this sense of purpose.
A highlight of the year was sharing and celebrating the
outcomes of an outstanding partnership between QEC
and Mallee District Aboriginal Service (MDAS) in the
Bumps to Babes and Beyond program.
In March, Victorian Minister for Health Jill Hennessy
launched the evaluation report into the program, which
led to reduced rates of maternal depression, and high
rates of breastfeeding and immunisation. QEC
appreciates the support of the Ministerial office and
senior department officials in communicating the
outcomes achieved through QEC tailored programs to a
diverse range of health services across Victoria.
I would especially like to thank Rudy Kirby, CEO MDAS,
and Janette Kennedy, Commission for Aboriginal
Children and Young People, Manager Aboriginal
Strategy and Policy for their ongoing advice, support
and commitment to building the profile of the program,
which contributes to reducing the risk of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander children entering out of home care.
A small group from QEC was invited to join the CEO of
MDAS and his team, Board members, families involved
in the program and stakeholders for a very special
celebration at Mungo National Park. The success of
this program was only achieved through working in
partnership with the Aboriginal community. We still
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“Our partnerships with all
governments at all levels are
critical, collaborative and
dynamic. QEC acknowledges
that we must work together
towards outcomes. “

have much to learn and appreciate this investment in
the continued development of our team and our
organisation.
QEC was proud to hear Andrew Jackomos, Victoria's
Commissioner for Aboriginal Children and Young People,
tell the Royal Commission into Family Violence that
Bumps to Babes and Beyond should be expanded.
QEC welcomes the Royal Commission into Family
Violence, and we were pleased to put forward a
submission. We work closely with Child Protection,
Child and Family Information, Referral and Support
Teams (Child FIRST), the Children’s Court, Maternal and
Child Health services and communities across Victoria
supporting vulnerable families. We are unique in that
through our evidence-based practice we present ‘the
voice of the child’ in these considerations.
The current system often fails children who experience
complex social and emotional disturbance through
being exposed to family violence in all its forms on a
daily basis. QEC works with children who demonstrate
the effects of cumulative harm. A small working party
brought their lived experience of working with children
exposed to family violence to develop QEC’s response to
the Royal Commission into Family Violence.
Family violence impacts on all areas of early
development and there is strong evidence that
concludes exposure is detrimental to the psychological,
social, emotional and physical wellbeing of the
developing child.
In our submission, we noted that QEC has a unique
opportunity to inquire and intervene in family violence
during pregnancy and post birth, and called for an
integrated approach to family violence in the community
with suitably resourced services to ensure that
intervention can continue in a planned and coordinated
approach to keep children and families safe.

In May 2015, QEC provided input to the VAGO audit into
Early Intervention Services for Vulnerable Children. The
audit focused on early intervention services provided
through the Child and Family Information, Referral and
Support Teams (Child FIRST) and Integrated Family
Services (IFS) system. It examined whether families can
readily access these services and whether services are
leading to positive outcomes for vulnerable families. We
are pleased to see that the government is investing in
improving productivity and outcomes in this space.
This year QEC was pleased to be involved in 2 of the 8
pilot programs for DHHS Services Connect - Southern
Melbourne and Hume Moreland partnerships. The
Services Connect model aims to improve the way in
which community services sector partners work together
to better support Victorians in need. The purpose of the
program is to provide case management to clients who
are linked into multiple services meaning a more
streamlined approach and hopefully easier experience
for the client. In recognition of QEC’s expertise Megan
Leuenberger, Community Service Manager, was
appointed as a member of the Victorian Services Connect
Research and Evaluation Committee.
QEC Board reviewed its governance and operations in
March 2015 with external consultant Alison Brown
(Australian Centre for Healthcare Governance) through
an assessment of individual and collective knowledge
and skills, demonstrating a commitment to developing
the strategic capacity of our Board.
Our partnerships with all governments at all levels are
critical, collaborative and dynamic. QEC acknowledges
that we must work together towards outcomes.
QEC services deliver outcomes across many portfolios,
from health, human services, early education, and
mental health through to Aboriginal Affairs, family
violence and justice.
We are confident that we will see some great initiatives
emerge in partnership with Victorian departments including
the Department of Health and Human Services, the
Department of Education and Training, and the Department
of Premier and Cabinet. We look forward to working with
Ministers Hennessy, Mikakos, Foley and Richards to address
early childhood and family vulnerability.

We thank all our staff and stakeholders on behalf of the
Board for their contribution over the past 12 months as
we transform our organisation and become recognised
for the work that we deliver across a broad sector of
health and family services.
At the end of October 2014 we were pleased to welcome
back previous board member, Mr David Howlett from a
volunteer posting in Malawi.
We would like to thank Mark Dunphy of Hall and Willcox
for his ongoing support to QEC and his wise counsel on
legal matters. Thanks also to Andrew Bayly for working
with our team as we develop.
QEC has a long heritage as a thought leader in the
sector. This year we moved away from a bi-annual
conference platform for knowledge sharing to the
production of White Papers reflecting the increasing
speed at which we learn, adapt and implement change.
In another significant change, on 30 June 2015 the
Trustees wound up the Queen Elizabeth Centre
Foundation. We wish to acknowledge the tremendous
legacy that the foundation leaves from raising funds to
enable innovation in program development over the past
25 years. The corpus has been transferred to the Wendy
Spry and Frank Slutzkin Research Fund providing new
avenues of care for the benefit of families and children in
the care of QEC.
As our organisation grows, so too does our energy and
commitment to building stronger families and
communities. We look forward to working with families
and partner organisations to make positive, long-lasting
and life-changing impacts in the lives of vulnerable
children in the year ahead.

Ms Athina Georgiou
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Funding announcements for the 2014 Department of
Social Services grants process and the National Perinatal
Depression Initiative clearly demonstrate that, as a
sector, we have much work to do in advocating at a
Federal level around early intervention and particularly
in the work that we deliver for refugee and migrant
families. I look forward to sharing our stories and
bringing to life the outcomes we achieve with Federal
parliamentarians this year.
2014-2015 | 5

About QEC

our service
& approach

Formed in 1917, QEC is a 42 bed public hospital and
community service organisation that provides a range of
residential and in-home services designed to develop
parenting competence.
We are Victoria’s largest provider of residential and community
parenting skills assessment and development services to families
at risk, delivering services across Melbourne, Barwon South West,
Hume, Gippsland, Loddon Mallee and the Grampians.
Many families face physical, psychological, intellectual or
environmental challenges that compromise their ability to nurture
and support the health, safety and wellbeing of their young children.
Programs are research informed, evidence based and individually
tailored to meet the unique needs of each family. These services
enable families to nurture and protect their children, to enhance
family health and development.

Our programs
QEC funds its programs through a mix of federal and state funding and is
supplemented by philanthropic funds. QEC delivered services to more
than 3,800 families in the last financial year across a range of programs.

Program

Assessment and intake
Residential Parenting
program (5 days)

Residential Parenting
Assessment and Skills
Development Services PASDS (10 days)
Day stay
Home Based PASDS
Parenting Plus
Stronger Families

In addition to residential programs, QEC offers community based
services that support parents and other carers to learn the skills, and
to access the services and networks they need, to build a strong family.

Location

Details

Noble Park

A mix of self and professional referral, through the use of an
Assessment and Intake System parents are triaged in order
to ensure the most vulnerable families are prioritised for program
access. This is the gateway for clients to access QEC programs.

Noble Park

A five day residential program for parents and caregivers
experiencing challenges with parenting.

Noble Park

An intensive parenting assessment and skills development
program established to assist high risk families within the legal
framework of the State Government’s Child Protection units. It
involves residential (10 days) monitoring and assessment with
short- term skill development interventions.

Noble Park

A seven-hour day-time service of intensive practical parenting
education, and support for groups of parents.

Southern Metro, Northern Metro, Gippsland,
Hume

A 12-week, 100 or 120 hour intensive home-based PASDS in two
metropolitan and two rural regions. Like the residential program,
families are referred through the state’s Child Protection system.

Southern Metro, Gippsland, Hume

An early intervention/prevention intensive home based parenting
skills development program for vulnerable families.

Southern Metro in partnership with
Connections Uniting Care

An intensive family coaching and support service.

Northern Metro in partnership with Kildonan

PlaySteps
Cradle to Kinder
Hey Babe
Bumps to Babes and
Beyond
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Gippsland (in partnership with Anglicare,
Quantum, Berry Street and Mandjana Lidj)
Frankston, Morwell, Noble Park

A relationship based parenting program focused on enhancing
interactions between children and their parents. It is a nine week,
2.5 hour per session, structured group program.

Dandenong (in partnership with Victorian
Aboriginal Child Care Agency) and Gippsland
(in partnership with Anglicare, Quantum,
Berry Street and Mandjana Lidj)

An antenatal and postnatal case management and support service
that provides intensive family and early parenting support to vulnerable
young mothers, under the age of 25 years and their children.

Gippsland (in partnership with Anglicare,
Quantum, Berry Street and Mandjana Lidj)

This program is for mothers who are over 25 years, pregnant or
have a new baby up to 4 weeks of age. Staff support the mothers
with home visits and groups for 12 months.

Mildura (in partnership with Mallee District
Aboriginal Service)

A two-year parenting program adapted from QEC’s Tummies-ToToddlers Pilot Program, designed to meet the specific needs of
the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community of Mildura.

Programs
& Families

Families receiving a QEC program
by DHHS Region

Metropolitan
Regions

3157

Rural
Regions

124

Southern

Gippsland

97
Eastern
20

Grampians

North & Western

6

35
Loddon
5
Hume

3444
TOTAL
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Programs
& Families

Total families admitted to residential
(parenting intervention) services, 2014-15

211
families

DAY STAY
PROGRAM

661
families

RESIDENTIAL
PROGRAM
(Including 5 and 10
day programs)
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181
families

PLAYSTEPS
PROGRAM
(Noble Park)

1053

TOTAL FAMILIES
DISCHARGED

Occasions of service for non-admitted
clients, 2014-15

3237

HOME VISITS

PROGRAM
HOURS

(Parenting Assessment & Skills
Development PASDS, Parenting Plus,
Stronger Families)

1598

CONSULTATIONS

7940
(Cradle to Kinder, Hey Babe, Family
and Children’s Services NSW,
Services Connect)

102

GROUP PROGRAMS
CONDUCTED

(Playsteps: Frankston and Morwell 62,
Afghan and Sudanese playgroups 40)

Assessment
& Intake

704

Family
Counselling
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Client
Stories
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The Twins

First-time parenting of twins is demanding, but the
challenges Mary and Adam faced were greater than
most. Both have intellectual disabilities, and Mary
also lives with schizophrenia and bi-polar illness.
When Mary gave birth to Ruby and Ned, the
Department of Human Services put the babies into the
care of Mary’s mum. It was devastating for the couple,
whose dream of raising a family seemed to be over.
The twins were eight weeks old when the family
started their journey with QEC. The ten day program at
QEC’s Noble Park live in unit was the first step towards
building parenting skills. At the end of the ten days,
Mary and Adam were able to have limited supervised
access with the babies.
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Experiencing community

“Now I know there are normal people out there.
That’s how long I’ve been meeting bad people for.
I’ve been frightened to meet new people.”
Sally was referred by the Victorian Department of Health
and Human Services to participate in QEC’s Community
Parenting Assessment and Skills Development program
after the birth of her daughter, Ella.
Sally started using drugs at 13. She has had eight children.
Five live with her parents in Darwin, one lives with her
sister, and her seventh baby was stillborn.
Falling pregnant with Ella, Sally knew the experience would
make her or break her. She stopped using drugs and has
been caring for Ella, with support from Sonia, her QEC
worker, and her drug and alcohol workers.
“I’ve learnt that truth is the best policy... when you’re in
that life of drugs you just lie and lie and lie and you
never get anywhere,” Sally said.
Sonia worked closely with Sally’s drug and
alcohol workers to help secure better housing
and arrange ongoing support from an
OzChild volunteer. Sonia visits Sally
at home, and responds to texts
or phone calls.

The family then entered the three month home-based
program, and Annie visited them twice a week with the
ambitious goal of reuniting the babies with their
parents. At the end of 3 months, the fears for the
welfare of the children were still strong, but no one
wanted to give up on this family.
They enrolled in QEC’s Stronger Families Program
(SFP), which allowed for longer visits in the home. The
moment of real change came during one of Annie’s
regular visits when one of the twins looked to Mary
when he fell over. For most mothers, that would be an
ordinary, forgettable moment. But for Mary it was a
breakthrough, because it was the very first time either
of her babies, now a year old, had reached out for her.
Mary’s confidence was growing, and not only with her

Ella is a happy and healthy baby and Sally now
understands how to care for her.
One of the most remarkable things for Sally has
been the way her interactions with people in the
community have changed. Her pharmacist saw
things changing, and gave Sally a change table
and clothing for Ella.
When Sally was walking across the street recently
a young woman stopped her to compliment her
on her pram and tell her how beautiful Ella was.
“I thought this lady looks beautiful, she looks
really normal, why would she want to stop and
talk to me? And I thought later on, oh my god,
she actually must have thought I looked as
normal as she did. After meeting her and
speaking to her, I actually want to go to a
mother and child story time and meet
new people, because people like
that, I would love to meet.”

children. She began to dress differently and take pride
in her appearance.
When Ruby and Ned were fourteen months old, Mary
and Adam began to bring them to the Play Steps
program once a week, where they mixed with other
families, and enjoyed playtime together. Annie would
attend the session with the family, and transport them
to and from Noble Park. It was a long way from their
first visit to QEC with their eight-week old babies.
After fifteen months of QEC working with the family,
Mary and Ned were reunited with their children. They
now have full-time, independent care of Ruby and Ned
– a remarkable success story.
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Excellence

in Service
Delivery

“To maintain excellence we must always
keep exploring how we do things and
how we can improve. This means
constant evaluating and questioning and
being willing to change. QEC
encourages all staff to think of better and
innovative ways “
Beverley Allen,

Director of Nursing

QEC strives to ensure that the care children and their
families receive is of the highest quality, evidence based
and adapts to community needs. This year a
Developmental Assessment project commenced which
explored the way children attending QEC programs were
assessed and how QEC practitioners could formalise the
way they provide Developmental Assessments. A cohort
of children attending the Parenting Assessment and
Skills Development (PASD) Program in the Residential
Services and Community programs had Developmental
Assessments. The next stage of the project will deliver
staff training so that all children in QEC programs have
developmental assessments.
Our teams provide valuable assistance to a range of
diverse families, yet many clients commence their
programs in a state of great anxiety. In partnership with
Swinburne University Design Communications honours
students we considered the question “How can QEC deinstitutionalise, simplify and strengthen our
communication with clients”. The project enabled a
deep dive into how we communicate with our clients
and has delivered robust findings and
recommendations. Over the next 12 months we will be
implementing these recommendations in collaboration
with five of the graduates from the program. A look at
our new welcome space will provide you with just a hint
of the transformation to come.
The Perinatal Depression Initiative Funding has allowed
QEC to deliver family counselling services, through our
in-house Psychologist and Social worker, to 70% of all
our families within the Residential Programs. Our Family
Counselling Team are exploring more sustainable ways
to incorporate support for Dads into the Residential
Programs. Roman Jansen, QEC’s Family Therapist, is
currently facilitating Dads’ Group on Tuesday evenings.
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QEC has been involved in the Baby Teeth Count Too! an
oral health education program developed jointly with
the Dental Health Service, Victoria and Tweddle and
O’Connell early parenting centres. QEC has assisted in
the development of an oral health program in QEC’s
residential centre and community programs.
QEC undertook a full surveillance accreditation in May 2015
in line with Human Services Standards and ISO 9001: 2008
for all programs funded by Department of Health and
Human Services and re-certification was endorsed.
The Quality Manager role is now a dedicated role one
day a week. An acting Quality Officer has also been
appointed one day a week. A Quality Administrator role
is now active. Together, good progress has been made
in further developing and maturing the quality
management system. Progress to “embed quality” has
been made by the identification and selection of
internal auditors from across the business, staff
attending Lean training and the commencement of a
number of Quality Improvement Projects. The Quality
Working Group has delivered great work through
collaboration with teams across the organization.
Feedback from clients, stakeholders and staff is
encouraged at QEC and received through a variety of
channels including admission, discharge, follow up
calls, surveys, focus groups and research projects. All
feedback is captured and managed through our Riskman
system and reported through to Senior Management,
the CEO and Board of Management Quality and Risk
Committee. This feedback is influential in informing our
strategic planning, projects and partnerships. Just as we
represent the voice of our child in the delivery of our
programs, we are keen to inform the development of our
programs through a robust understanding of a clients
journey with QEC.

People
& Culture

“QEC attracts, retains and develops it
people with the right knowledge, skills
and attributes to respond to an ever
changing environment.“
Letitia Billings,
Manager People and Culture

QEC policies and procedures are in place to ensure our
commitment to fair work, the Victorian Public Service
Code of Practice, skills development and the modelling of
QEC values.
In 2014, People and Culture led the redesign of QEC’s
Scholarship program. The aims of the scholarship are to
provide QEC employees with an opportunity to continue
life-long learning opportunities and to build QEC’s
knowledge base and facilitate QEC in becoming a
distinguished thought leader.
In its inaugural year four employees were successful in
their application to the scholarship program, our
congratulations go to Roman Jansen, Samantha Massey,
Holly McLean and Leiana Kaminski.
The trial orientation process for QEC volunteers took place
on 26 November 2014. Positive feedback was received
with the pilot completed in February. Recruitment
commenced in March and has been led by Suzanne Parry,
People and Culture Coordinator.
Our volunteers program is now operating at Noble Park.
Our volunteers welcome clients on arrival to their program
and assist them with their departure. The volunteers help
settle the families into QEC, take them on a tour of the
building and assist with any non clinical questions. This
has been really successful, both staff and our families
have been very receptive to our Monday volunteers.
QEC received a $3,000 grant from the
federally funded Corporate
Champions program to

introduce initiatives to better support an ageing
workforce. Organisational Development Consultant Ms
Kate Kinsella from Albion Consulting facilitated a
workshop with the management team titled Leading
Conversation through Diversity. Board member Sharon
Beaumont was instrumental in creating this opportunity.
QEC held a full day workshop on 17 March 2015 in NAB
Collins Street for its managers and emerging leaders
across all parts of the business. The workshop was
facilitated by Andrew Bayly, who works predominantly in
the corporate space and has an interest in the not-forprofit space. The day was very successful creating
enthusiasm and a solidarity amongst staff to enable us to
move forward on a number of exciting initiatives which are
underpinned by our strategic plan. This was the first time
QEC had brought together its managers and aspiring
leaders to connect with one another, brainstorm issues,
develop solutions and operationalise them into clear
deliverable outcomes.
People and Culture commenced a Roadshow involving
training and discussion in regards to the new Policy and
Procedure Framework with a focus on Bullying and
Harassment and Sexual Harassment Procedures. This has
complemented the development of skills in “having difficult
conversations” delivered through training to all staff.
A review of the Performance Appraisal system has
commenced and Managers and senior staff have received
training in interviewing skills.

QEC Volunteers
Image courtesy,
Dandenong Journal
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People
& Culture
OUR TEAM

ROLE

Administration/Finance

Chief Executive Officer

Clinical Education Coordinators

JUNE
Current Month FTE

JUNE
YTD FTE

2014

2015

2014

2015

11.6

13.0

10.9

13.3

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

0.5

0.7

0.5

0.5

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

43.2

44.7

41.7

44.2

8.1

10.1

7.7

9.9

5.0

4.5

5.6

4.2

9.9

10.3

10.8

9.3

8.8

5.9

8.8

5.9

91.1

93.2

90.0

91.3

(Inc Maternal & Child Health Nurses)

Director of Medical Services

Director of Nursing

Early Parenting Practitioners

(Inc. Enrolled Nurses, Early Childhood Development Workers)

Family Counsellors (Incl. Psychologists and Social Workers)

Managers

Program Coordinators

(Inc Maternal & Child Health Nurses)

Team Leaders

(Inc Maternal & Child Health Nurses)

TOTAL
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Evaluation,

Research
& Training

“There is so much opportunity to learn
and share knowledge. Every day we
learn something new either from each
other, something we read, or
something we see and hear. It is
important to reflect each day and ask
ourselves what we have learnt.“
Beverley Allen,

Director of Nursing
and Learning and Development.

The Learning and Development Team has continued to
provide training packages and reflective practice
supervision to all QEC staff teams and to professionals in
external organisations as QEC’s reputation in this area
grows. QEC provides regular Reflective Practice Supervision
to Maternal and Child Health Teams in City of Dandenong
and Frankston and the graduate Maternal and Child Health
Nurses in City of Bayside, Glen Eira and Kingston.
QEC support staff in their work with families by ensuring they
have access to training, reflective practice supervision and
attendance at conferences. Twenty-five QEC staff attended
the International Child Trauma Conference in Melbourne in
August 2014. The presentations discussed the importance of
recognising the lifelong impact trauma has on a child’s
developing brain and their ability to form stable
relationships. Many of the families that attend QEC programs
have experienced significant trauma in their lives which
impacts on their ability to provide consistent, safe and
nurturing care to their children. The presentations validated
the intensive early intervention programs delivered by QEC
and the attendees were provided with the opportunity to
build their knowledge of trauma to inform practice.
QEC Research Advisory group consists of a group of
researchers who share their expertise to inform QEC
research goals and plans. A five year research strategic
plan is in development and will guide research priorities
and development of research partners.
Beverley Allen was awarded a Creswick Foundation
Fellowship in 2014 which enabled her to learn from
organisations that are delivering Mellow Parenting
programs in UK, Scotland and Northern Ireland, as well as a
Maori specialist children’s service in New Zealand that has
adapted the program for the Maori community.
QEC Journal Club launched in 2014. This is an exciting
development for our practitioners that supports evidence
based learning and creates opportunity for discussion and
sharing of expertise.

Sharon Gorton, Manager Learning and Development has
joined the Red Cross Australian Volunteers for International
development. This is a 10 month position working with the
Laos Association for Autism to develop training packages
for their staff working with children with autism.
Our team is providing training for Aboriginal Early Years
practitioners across five Mallee District Aboriginal Services
including Swan Hill, Robinvale, Mildura, Echuca and Bendigo.
Beverley Allen attended their inaugural Early Years conference
and presented information on the Family Partnership Training,
Keys to CareGiving, NCAST teaching and feeding interaction
assessment, PlaySteps training and Reflective Practice. The
Aboriginal practitioners provided positive feedback regarding
the cultural adaption of these programs.
We welcomed a delegation of 18 General Practitioner
members of Shanghai Community Health on 13 November
2014 to share learnings around early parenting and early
years development.
On 3 March, 7 QEC staff graduated from a Lean training
program. We look forward to implementing the initiatives
that our team developed through this experience.
QEC was successful in their submission for special-purpose
funding of $15,000 Department of Health and Human
Services in 2014-15. The funding is recognising the
importance of a quality clinical learning environment in
developing a skilled and competent health workforce. This
funding will be used for identifying and implementing the
key factors which produce an innovative learning
environment for students and new staff at QEC.
QEC has commenced a Twilight Seminars Series for health
workers in the maternal and child health fields. There has
been great interest in the series, with the first in the series
being sold out. In Series 1 (30 April) QEC’s Dr Helen Jeges
and Sharon Gorton presented “Red flags: early
identification of delayed, different and disordered
development in infants and toddlers”.
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This is the year
that was . . .
CWA Teddies

QEC Music
Therapy

The Hon.
Jill Hennessy,
Minister for Health
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CWA and QEC
a wonderful
partnership

Santa resting between
playgroups

Janine & Trudy
2014-2015 | 17

Community &
Partnerships

“We have had some incredibly
memorable moments through these
programs, including the
reunification of three cousins who
were separated for 8 years through
the Sudan civil war.”

Megan Leuenberger,

Manager Community Programs

Understanding who we are, what we do, how that aligns
with other services and where we can address the gap lies
at the heart of our decision making, investments and
projects. As we move forward we also look to the past and
we see that while so much has changed, one thing has not QEC has always been an innovator, we have attracted
partners in innovation and that has allowed us to continue
to strengthen our operations and extend our reach. Two
QEC community centres (Northern and Southern) have
moved to larger premises to accommodate the growth in
the community programs.
In 2014/15 new and maturing partnerships have included
Mallee District Aboriginal Services, Families and Community
Services NSW, Services Connect Pilots in Southern Melbourne
and Hume Moreland and Swinburne University. Each of these
partnerships has a common thread – the work that we are
doing in research or in practice has the customer at the
centre. From the assessment programs that we are delivering
for NSW families to the outcomes that we are achieving with
Aboriginal families in the Mallee, we are becoming
increasingly nimble. We are listening to our clients and our
stakeholders, evaluating programs, adjusting our programs,
designing new programs and delivering more for less.
QEC is working with Families and Community Services NSW
in the delivery of an early intervention assessment tool to
assess the safety of babies/children in families identified as
at risk, in home or in out of home care, and allow for earlier
permanent placement in a safe environment. Children
placed in permanent, safe environment earlier reduces risk
of cumulative harm. Stability and permanency will lead to
improved developmental outcomes, mental health and
wellbeing. This area is a focus of the revised Children Youth
and Families Act to be released in March 2016.
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We continue to work in partnership with a range of
National, State and local government and non-government
organisations in the delivery of programs:
Victorian Aboriginal Child Care Agency
Cradle to Kinder, Dandenong
Anglicare
Cradle to Kinder, Hey Babe, Gippsland and
Playsteps, Frankston
Uniting Care Kildon and Connections
Stronger Families, Hume Moreland and Southern Regions
Berry Street
Stronger Families – Northern and Southern Regions
Windemere
Services Connect
YSAS, Wesley Mission, Melbourne City Mission, Hanover
Welfare Services
Services Connect and Stronger Families
Victorian Child First Regional Alliances
for all QEC programs

“QEC has a commitment to
continue to provide appropriate
services for culturally and
linguistically diverse clients, and
refugees. Our focus is on
embedding this cultural awareness
into everything we do.“

Karen Monaghan,

Manager Marketing,
Business Development & Quality
Following the loss of funding from Department of Social
Services we farewelled our Afghan and Sudanese families
who had been attending supported playgroups at QEC for
the past 12 years. Our team worked with families to
transition them into other services in their communities.
We have had some incredibly memorable moments
through these programs, including the reunification of
three cousins who were separated for 8 years through the
Sudan civil war. The cultural playgroup enjoyed an
excursion to Werribee Zoo this year. We experienced a real
cultural immersion with families from Sudan, Ethiopa and
Afghanistan coming together for the day. The children were
able to explore the zoo while parents shared stories of life
from their home countries.
QEC has a commitment to continue to provide appropriate
services for culturally and linguistically diverse clients, and
refugees. Our focus is on embedding this cultural
awareness into everything we do.

school with our families, and launched our 2014 Annual
General Meeting with a stirring performance by their
drumming group. We have met with Councillor Roz Blades
and Lee Robson Manager, Community Arts, Culture and
Library Services to exchange a range of ideas to engage
with our neighbourhood.
In May 2015, Athina Georgiou and Karen Monaghan
attended the Country Women’s Association (CWA) of
Victoria State Conference in Bendigo where we were
presented with a cheque for $17, 431 as recipients of the
CWA State Project Fundraising 2014. This was the
culmination of 12 months’ fundraising and profile raising
activities led by the CWA Noble Park Branch including
fashion parades, market stalls, books sales and more.
These proceeds have funded our new, child friendly
welcome space at QEC. Our team has presented to CWA
branches across Victoria over the past year sharing our
stories with this incredible army of volunteers. Our people
always return refreshed and inspired by these visits.

We are strengthening ties with our neighbours in Noble
Park including the Noble Park English Language School.
We have attended multicultural performances at the

Athina Georgiou, CEO
Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health
and Rudolph Kirby CEO Mallee
District Aboriginal Service
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Self Sufficiency
& Sustainability

“The Renovations Users Group visited a
number of sites around Melbourne to
obtain fresh ideas about form and
function in building design. Sites
visited included Royal Children’s
Hospital, YMCA Carlton and Doveton
Community College. The group
returned excited by opportunities.”
Janelle Crossett,

Manager Systems and Risk

QEC Noble Park site has undergone renovations in
2014/15 including refurbishment of the inner courtyards
of the Residential unit to include an al-fresco dining area,
play and contemplative areas for families. The staff room
was expanded and refreshed to accommodate our
growing team, and a new look, open plan administration
area was developed.
Architect Peter McDonald consulted with a QEC users
group and Swinburne students to provide input into the
final design drawings. This group became the Go To team
facilitating communications regarding the project between
contractors and staff. The Renovations Users Group visited
a number of sites around Melbourne to obtain fresh ideas
about form and function in building design. Sites visited
included Royal Children’s Hospital, YMCA Carlton and
Doveton Community College. The group returned excited
by opportunities.
Moth Design were commissioned to work with Peter
McDonald on our welcome space (formerly known as
reception) to create a fun, warm entry for children and
their families.
The ICT team is working with Phonecycle to replace QEC’s
superseded mobile phones in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner. Funds raised
through this program go towards improvements in our
physical environment.
QEC community workers received upgraded personal safety
units throughout the year. Safe T Card provides security
alerts and GPS location of staff providing coverage 24
hours, 7 days per week. The upgraded Safe T Card GPS
works through a prioritised Telstra line, ensuring our staff
are always able to be supported through duress monitoring.
QEC monitors Occupational Health and Safety Management
alongside the Environment and Sustainability Program
through a Risk Management System. QEC’s Occupational
Health, Safety, Environment and Sustainability Committee
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oversaw over sixty activities throughout the year including:
audits, site assessments, evacuation drills and incident
investigations. Review of OH&S incidents were followed up
through Emergency Evacuation Staff reviews of seven
evacuation drills and OH&S Staff Advocacy for a number of
incidents relating to OH&S throughout the period.
In November 2014 QEC rolled out an evacuation video that
will be shown on electronic tablets to all families upon
admission, visitors, contractors and general staff at the
Noble Park site. This 2 minute video is the first of several
fire/evacuation videos to educate staff and families on
safety procedures at Thomas Street and outline the role of
QEC emergency staff.
QEC rolled out an online workforce management tool,
easyEMPLOYER in late 2014 with the introduction of an
electronic roster and timesheet system. Implementation of
the tool will be extended to include online electronic
payslips to complete the project.
Janelle Crossett has led the multidisciplinary team
responsible for this organisation-wide change process,
working closely with People and Culture who have
formulated the communication and training strategy while
addressing a broad range of cultural issues. The tool can be
accessed on any internet enabled device.

Our Supporters
Investing in the development of stronger
families
QEC acknowledges the support of:
•

The Victorian Government

•

Family and Community Services, NSW

•

Australian Government Department of Social Services

Funding from individuals, philanthropic trusts
and community groups
This funding allows QEC to invest in innovation in
programming and delivery of services. We are ever
grateful for this support that has raised $91,835 in
donations in 2014/15.
Batchelder Estate
CEO Circle
Corporate Champions
Country Womens Association of Victoria Inc.
QEC Foundation
Sir Walter Leitch Estate
The Collier Charitable Fund
The Creswick Foundation

Pro bono or ‘in kind’ support
Andrew Bayly
CPR Melbourne
Hall & Willcox Lawyers
NAB
RSM Bird Cameron
Swinburne University of Technology

As a result of this funding we have been able to:
•
•

•
•
•

Redesign our welcome space – our first step in
implementing Swinburne research findings
Provide an Art Therapy Program for our 5 and 10
day residential clients, and pilot the program
through our community in-home programs in
2015/16
Evaluate and launch the findings of the Bumps to
Babes and Beyond Program
Produce our first White Paper – How Effective
Partnerships Can Create a Better Future
Send our Director of Nursing to the UK to
investigate the Mellow Parenting Program

Patron
June Shaw

Life Governors
Mr David Dyer AM
Mrs Patti Fellows
Mrs Nan Harrison
Mrs Susan Harper OAM
The Honorable Walter Jona AM
Mr Graeme McRae
Mr Bruce Morley
Assoc Prof Campbell Paul
Ms Wendy Spry
Mr Frank Slutzkin
Mrs Judy Watson
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Our Board
MEMBERS 2014-2015

Mr Phillip Davies

LLM, LLB (Hons) , BA (Hons), GAICD
PRESIDENT
Phillip Davies is currently CEO/General Counsel of
Advanced Paediatric Life Support Systems (APLS).
Phillip is on a number of boards across the notfor-profit, government and private sectors in the
health, education and welfare space. He was a
partner at King Wood Mallesons from 1 January
1999 to 30 June 2012. Phillip joined the Board in
2012 and is an independent member of the Audit
& Finance Committee, Strategic & Service
Planning Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Board of Management meeting
attendance for the period was 88%.
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Ms Mary Sayers

BA, Grad Dip HR, MCom
VICE PRESIDENT
Mary Sayers is Deputy Chief Executive Officer at
the Victorian Council of Social Service (VCOSS)
working in close partnership with the CEO, to
support the organisation, members, the
development of policy and sector sustainability
activities. Prior to VCOSS she was Manager
Family, Children and Young People at the City of
Whittlesea between 2012 and 2014. Up until
2012 Mary worked nearly 9 years at the Centre for
Community Child Health (CCCH) where she
managed the implementation of the Australian
Early Development Index (AEDI) and was
responsible for early childhood policy, translation
of research into practice, workforce development,
service development and evaluation projects and
initiatives. Mary joined the Board in 2010 and is
a Member of the Quality Assurance and Risk
Committee and Strategic & Service Planning
Committee. Board of Management meeting
attendance for the period was 50%.

Ms Selina Lightfoot

BA/LLB, AICD, Grad Dip Applied Finance &
Investment
VICE PRESIDENT
Selina is a company director and legal consultant,
having had a commercial legal career spanning
over 20 years, including 10 years as a partner at
Freehills. Her areas of expertise include M&A,
commercial contracts, risk management and
governance. She has worked across a broad range
of industries including technology and health.
Selina is currently a Consultant to Herbert Smith
Freehills and a member of its Pro Bono and
Community Board, a director of the Australian
Institute of Management Group and an Advisory
Board member for TLC Aged Care. Selina joined
the Board in 2012 and is an independent member
of the Audit & Finance Committee. Board of
Management meeting attendance for the period
was 100%.

Ms Sharon Beaumont

BSc (Physiotherapy), Grad Dip OHS, MBA, GAICD
Sharon has more than 20 years’ experience in
health, risk management and human resource
management and is currently the Director Human
Resources at Grill’d. She joined the QEC Board in
2013. Sharon is an independent member of the
Audit & Finance Committee and Quality Assurance
& Risk Committee. Board of Management meeting
attendance for the period was 100%.

Ms Vicki Cowling

Mr Warwick Spargo

FCPA, IIA, CFE
TREASURER
Warwick has a 26 year career in public sector
auditing and is currently an Audit Partner at RSM
Bird Cameron. Warwick specialises in public
sector governance and risk management and is a
Certified Fraud Examiner. Warwick joined the QEC
Board in 2013 and he is Chair of the Audit &
Finance Committee. Board of Management
meeting attendance for the period was 75%.

BA, BSW, GradDipBehavHlth, GradDipChild
Psychotherapy, MA
Vicki is a clinical social worker and psychologist
in private practice. Vicki's focus for the past 20
years has been children of parents with mental
illness and their families, through involvement in
research and publications, and Reference Group
membership of a related DoHA funded initiative.
Vicki is a member of the National Mental Health
Committee of the Australian Association of Social
Workers. She joined the QEC Board in 2013 and
was a member of the Quality Assurance & Risk
Committee, and the Research Advisory Group.
Vicki resigned from the Board of Management in
September 2014. Board of Management meeting
attendance for the period was 100%.
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Our Board
MEMBERS 2014-2015

Ms June McLoughlin

Ms Kym Forrest

RN, BN, MMgt
Kym has a 30 year career in Nursing and is currently the
General Manager Monash Children’s Hospital and
Women’s Services and Director of the Monash
Children’s Hospital Capital Project Monash Health. Kym
has substantial experience in hospital management and
clinical service planning. She has been on the Board
since 2009. Kym is currently the Chair of the Quality
Assurance and Risk Committee. Board of Management
meeting attendance for the period was 75%.

B.Ed, M.Ed, Dip.MR, Dip.T (Early Ch)
June is the Executive Principal Doveton College, a
prenatal to Year 9 integrated education facility, a
Commonwealth, State, philanthropy partnership. She
has had extensive experience as an educator, manager
and policy developer in the fields of intellectual
disability, early intervention and children and family
services. She is currently on a number of high level
federal and state government committees, and boards
including Families and Children Sub-Committee for the
Unaccompanied Minors on Nauru Advisory Committee
(Dept of Immigration), member Victorian Community
Sector Reform Council and member, Australian
Children’s Education and Care Authority. June joined
the Board in August 2014 and she is currently on the
Quality and Risk Committee. Board of Management
meeting attendance for the period was 75%.

Assoc Prof Campbell Paul

Ms Karen Wells

B Comm, FCA, GAICD
Karen is a chartered accountant and a registered
company auditor. She is a director of HLB Mann Judd.
Karen specialises in the areas of audit, financial
reporting, quality control and risk management. She
joined the Board in 2010 and currently is an
independent member of the Audit & Finance Committee.
Board of Management meeting attendance for the
period was 75%.
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MBBS, FRANZCP Cert Child & Adolescent Psych
Associate Professor Paul is a Consultant Child
Psychiatrist practicing at the Royal Children’s Hospital.
He is a leading practitioner, academic and dedicated
campaigner for promoting and progressing service and
workforce development to support infant mental health
both in Australia and internationally. Campbell has
been a member of the Board for more than 20 years,
joining in 1991 and is the Chair of the Research
Advisory Group. Board of Management meeting
attendance for the period was 100%.

Our Senior Reporting & Functional Chart
Board of Management
Board Secretary

Subcommittees:

Chair: Phillip Davies

Executive,
Remuneration,
Quality Assurance and Risk,
Finance & Audit,
Strategic and
Service Planning

Dorella Mohun

Chief Executive Officer
Athina Georgiou

Manager
Residential Services
Emily Herde - May 2015
Louise Gawler
(Acting since May 2015)
Manager Learning
& Development
Sharon Gorton
- April 2015

Director
of Nursing
Beverley Allen

Professional
Governance Nursing
& Midwifery

Infection Control

Medical Officer

Executive Assistant

Dr Gideon Saaroni

Dorella Mohun

Manager
Systems & Risk

Letitia Billings

Janelle Crossett

Manager
Commercial &
Finance
Claire Raynor

Networks, Contracts
& Partnerships

Financial Reporting

Marketing

Human Resource
Consulting

Freedom of
Information
& Privacy Officer

Payroll

Business
Development

Organisational
Development &
Learning

Information &
Communication
Technology

Community Programs
- Southern Region
- Northern Region
- Hume Region

- June 2015

Catherine Sims
- since June 2015

Manager
Marketing,
Development
and Quality
Karen Monaghan

Manager
People & Culture

Manager
Community
Programs
Megan
Leuenberger

Education

PASDS

Contracts

Quality Management
System

Recruitment &
Retention

Risk Management

Research

Parenting Plus

Facilities

Registration &
Accreditation

Industrial Relations

Health Information

Volunteer Program

Occupational
Health & Safety

Programs
- Assessment & Intake
- Residential
- Day Stay
Community Programs
- Cradle to Kinder
Southern &
Gippsland Regions
Gippsland Region
- PASDS
- Parenting Plus
- Stronger Families
- Hey Babe

Stronger Families

Services Connect Pilot
- Southern Melbourne
- Hume Moreland

Environment
& Sustainability

Administration

Bumps to Babes
and Beyond
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Declarations &
Compliance

Environment

QEC has an Environment and Sustainability Program. QEC
reports environmental data to the Victorian Government
Health Information System monthly. Initiatives include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Incorporation

The Queen Elizabeth Centre, QEC, is a registered public hospital
in accordance with the Health Services Act 1988.
QEC is a registered Community Service Organisation under
Section 46 of the Children, Youth and Families Act 2005. QEC
is registered to meet the needs of children requiring care,
support protection or accommodation and of families
requiring support.
The Minister for Health, Jill Hennessy, has portfolio
responsibility for QEC.

Quality Accreditation

QEC operates a quality management system compliant with
the requirements of the Human Services Standards,
Department of Human Services Standards 2012 and AS/NZS
ISO 9001:2008.

Building and Maintenance

QEC fully complies with the building and maintenance
provisions of the Building Act 1993.

Freedom of Information

QEC Information Publication Scheme and strategic planning and
operational policies are available at www.qec.org.au. Standard
disclosures in this report have been retained by QEC and are
available to the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and
the public on request, subject to the Freedom of Information Act
1982. QEC received three Freedom of Information requests
throughout the year under the Freedom of Information Act 1982.

Privacy

QEC complies with the Victorian Information Privacy Principles
and the Commonwealth Privacy Act 2004.

•

Reducing the amount of waste
Encouraging the use of recycled resources
All equipment settings default to minimise waste
Separating office waste into re-usable, recyclable
and general waste
Encouraging staff to reduce environmental impacts
New capital works incorporate environmental
sustainability principles
Purchase of fleet cars takes into account
environmental considerations
Ongoing environmental projects including tree
management program

Financial Management

QEC complies with the Financial Management Act 1994.

Revenue Indicators

During financial year 2015, QEC had nil collection days in
Private, TAC, VWA, Other Compensable, Psychiatric or Nursing
home categories.

National Competition Policy

QEC complies with National Competition Policy guidelines when
tendering. The Centre has outsourced all non-core services.

Consultants

In 2014-15 there were four consultancies where the total fees
payable to the consultants were $10,000 or greater. The total
expenditure incurred during 2014-15 to these consultancies
is $169,385.55 (ex GST). Details of individual consultancies
can be viewed at www.qec.org.au.
In 2014-15 there were seven consultancies where the total
fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000. The
total expenditure incurred during 2014-15 in relation to these
consultancies is $13,376.40 (ex GST).
Information regarding QEC consultancies is available at
www.qec.org.au.

Other Information

Information required in accordance with FR22 of the Financial
Management Act 1994 is available on request.

Honorary Lawyers

Protected Disclosure

Hall and Wilcox

Occupational Health and Safety

Auditor-General Victoria

There were no disclosures under the Protected Disclosure Act 2012.

QEC monitors Occupational Health and Safety alongside the
Environment and Sustainability Program through a Risk
Management System.
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Auditors
Bankers

National Australia Bank Limited

Attestations
THE QUEEN ELIZABETH CENTRE

Attestation for Compliance with the
Australian/New Zealand Risk Management
Standard

Attestation on Data Integrity

I, Phillip Davies, certify that The Queen Elizabeth Centre has risk
management processes in place consistent with the AS/NZS ISO
3100:2009 (or an equivalent designate standard) and an internal
control system is in place that enables the executive to understand,
manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures. The Quality & Risk
Committee verifies this assurance and that the risk profile of The
Queen Elizabeth Centre has been critically reviewed within the last
12 months.

I, Athina Georgiou, certify that The Queen Elizabeth Centre
has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes
to ensure that reported data reasonably reflects actual
performance. The Queen Elizabeth Centre has critically
reviewed those controls and processes during the year

Athina Georgiou
Chief Executive Officer
Noble Park, 30 June 2015

Kym Forrest
Chair, Quality and Risk Committee

Attestation for compliance with the
Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5.1 Insurance

Noble Park, 30 June 2015

Attestation in Accordance with the
Financial Management Act 1994

I, Athina Georgiou, certify that The Queen Elizabeth Centre
has complied with Ministerial Direction 4.5.5.1 – Insurance.

I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for the Queen
Elizabeth Centre for the year ending 30 June 2015.

Athina Georgiou
Chief Executive Officer
Warwick Spargo
Treasurer

Noble Park, 30 June 2015

Noble Park, 30 June 2015

Financial Summary 2010-2015
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Comprehensive Result for the Year

Retained Surplus/(Accumulated Deficit)
Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Total Equity

2014-15
$

2013-14
$

10,146,995 10,642,267

2012-13
$

2011-12
$

2010-11
$

10,146,224

9,033,338

8,777,851

10,083,632

9,709,407

9,136,120

8,537,484

8,776,731

63,363

932,860

1,010,104

495,854

1,120

-263,758

-327,121

-655,939

-1,613,377

-1,772,187

12,799,804

12,045,685

11,202,868

10,261,408

2,461,280

2,640,021

2,807,308

2,361,702

10,401,887 10,338,524

9,405,664

8,395,560

7,899,706

10,401,887 10,338,524

9,405,664

8,395,560

7,899,706

12,886,543
2,484,656

2014-2015 | 27

Disclosure
Index
Legislation

The annual report of the The Queen Elizabeth Centre
(QEC) is prepared in accordance with all relevant
Victorian legislation. This index has been prepared
to facilitate identification of the Department’s
compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Requirement

Page Reference

Ministerial Directions
Report of Operations
CHARTER AND PURPOSE
FRD 22F
Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers
FRD 22F
Purpose, functions, powers and duties
FRD 22F
Initiatives and key achievements
FRD 22F
Nature and range of services provided

26
2, 4
4, 12, 13, 15, 18, 19, 20
6

MANAGEMENT AND STRUCTURE
FRD 22F
Organisation structure

22, 25

FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
FRD 10
Disclosure index
FRD 11A
Disclosure of ex – gratia expenses
FRD 12A
Disclosure of major contracts
FRD 21B
Responsible person and executive officer disclosures
FRD 22F
Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012
FRD 22F
Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012
FRD 22F
Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982
FRD 22F
Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993
FRD 22F
Details of consultancies over $10,000
FRD 22F
Details of consultancies under $10,000
FRD 22F
Employment and conduct principles
FRD 22F
Major changes or factors affecting performance
FRD 22F
Occupational health and safety
FRD 22F
Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives
FRD 24C
Reporting of office-based environmental impacts
FRD 22F
Significant changes in financial position during the year
FRD 22F
Statement on National Competition policy
FRD 22F
Subsequent events

28
n/a
n/a
64
26
n/a
26
26
26
26
13, 14
4
20, 26
7, 8, 9
26
n/a
26
65
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Legislation

Requirement

Page Reference

FRD 22F
FRD 22F

Summary of the financial results for the year
Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application
of employment and conduct principles
Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures
Workforce Data disclosures
Specific information requirements
Sign-off requirements
Attestation on data integrity
Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5.1 compliance attestation
Risk management compliance attestation

27

FRD 25B
FRD 29A
SD 4.2(g)
SD 4.2(j)
SD 3.4.13
SD 4.5.5.1
SD 4.5.5

13, 14
n/a
14
31-65
27
27
27
27

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD 4.2(a)
Statement of changes in equity
SD 4.2(b)
Comprehensive operating statement
SD 4.2(b)
Balance sheet
SD 4.2(b)
Cash flow statement

39
37
38
40

OTHER REQUIREMENTS UNDER STANDING DIRECTIONS 4.2
SD 4.2(a)
Compliance with Australian accounting standards and
other authoritative pronouncements
SD 4.2(c)
Accountable officer’s declaration
SD 4.2(c)
Compliance with Ministerial Directions
SD 4.2(d)
Rounding of amounts

41
33
41
43

LEGISLATION
Freedom of Information Act 1982
Protected Disclosure Act 2012
Carers Recognition Act 2012
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2013
Building Act 1993
Financial Management Act 1994

26
26
n/a
n/a
26
26
2014-2015 | 29

Strengthening Families Together . . .

Page 31

Queen Elizabeth Centre
2014-15
97th Annual Report
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Contents
Auditor General's report
QEC Officer's Declaration
Financial Statements

This report was released to the public on 11 November 2015

Page 32

Page 33

The Queen Elizabeth Centre

Board Member’s, Accountable Officer’s and Chief Finance and
Accounting Officer’s Declaration

We certify that the attached financial statements for The Queen Elizabeth Centre have been prepared in
accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting
Directions, Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and notes to and forming part of the
financial statements, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2015 and the
financial position of The Queen Elizabeth Centre at 30 June 2015.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the
financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

________________
Warwick Spargo
Board Member

Noble Park
28 August 2015

________________
Athina Georgiou
Chief Executive Officer

_______________
Catherine Sim
Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Noble Park
28 August 2015

Noble Park
28 August 2015
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Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Notes

2015

2014

$

$

Revenue from Operating Activities

2

9,905,695

9,585,938

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

2

235,455

322,489

Employee Expenses

3

(7,723,678)

(7,353,770)

Supplies & Consumables

3

(198,383)

(162,648)

Other Expenses

3

(1,825,339)

(1,885,459)

393,750

506,550

(336,232)

(307,530)

Net Result before Capital and Specific Items

Depreciation and Amortisation

4

Net realised gain on disposal of equities

-

77,472

5,845

52,326

63,363

328,818

-

651,534

Writeback of previous available for sale reserve on realisation

-

(47,492)

Total other comprehensive income

-

604,042

63,363

932,860

Net Gains on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

2a

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net result

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2015
Notes

2015

2014

$

$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

5

1,418,227

4,421,466

Receivables

6

133,536

363,521

Other Current Assets

29,685

Total Current Assets

-

1,581,448

4,784,987

340,704

Non-Current Assets
Receivables

6

301,555

Investments and other financial assets

7

3,096,926

Property, Plant and Equipment

8

7,712,620

7,437,104

Intangible Assets

9

193,994

237,009

Total Non-Current Assets

11,305,095

8,014,817

TOTAL ASSETS

12,886,543

12,799,804

-

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables

10

542,263

365,992

Revenue Received in Advance

11

20,073

271,992

Provisions

12

1,669,268

1,703,457

2,231,604

2,341,441

253,052

119,839

253,052

119,839

2,484,656

2,461,280

10,401,887

10,338,524

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

12

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Asset Revaluation Reserve

14 a

4,781,107

4,781,107

General Purpose Reserve

14 a

990,000

990,000

Contributed Capital

14 b

4,894,538

4,894,538

Accumulated Deficit

14 c

TOTAL EQUITY

(263,758)
10,401,887

Commitments for expenditure

17

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

18

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

(327,121)
10,338,524
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Notes

Equity at 1

Comprehensive

Equity at

July 2014

result

30 June 2015

$

$

$

(327,121)

Accumulated Deficit

-

Net Result

(327,121)

63,363
14(c)

Contributed Capital

63,363

(327,121)

63,363
(263,758)

4,894,538

-

4,894,538

4,894,538

-

4,894,538

4,781,107

-

4,781,107

990,000

-

990,000

14(a)

5,771,107

-

5,771,107

14(d)

10,338,524

63,363

10,401,887

Equity at
1 July 2013

Comprehensive
result

Equity at
30 June 2014

$

$

$

14(b)
Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve
General Reserve
Total Equity at the end of the
financial year

Notes

(655,939)

Accumulated Deficit
Net Result

14(c)

Contributed Capital

(655,939)

-

(655,939)

328,818

328,818

328,818

(327,121)

4,894,538

-

4,894,538

4,894,538

-

4,894,538

Asset Revaluation Reserve

4,129,573

651,534

4,781,107

Available for Sale Reserve

47,492

14(b)
Reserves

-

990,000

-

990,000

14(a)

5,167,065

604,042

5,771,107

14(d)

9,405,664

932,860

10,338,524

General Reserve
Total Equity at the end of the
financial year

(47,492)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Notes

2015

2014

$

$

9,323,530

9,044,036

91,834

72,728

Interest Received

151,630

244,075

GST received from ATO

229,597

195,375

Other Receipts

332,854

259,380

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Government Grants
Donations and Bequests

Payments
Employee Benefits Paid

(7,559,021)

(7,417,764)

Payments for Supplies Consumables and Other Expenses

(1,913,849)

(2,107,429)

656,575

290,401

(572,434)

(420,394)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

15

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Properties, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Properties, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale / Redemption of Investments
Purchase of investments

117,231

-

3,346,104

(3,096,926)

(1,465,382)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(3,659,814)

1,577,559

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD

(3,003,239)

1,867,960

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR

4,421,466

2,553,506

1,418,227

4,421,466

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

7

9,546

5
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NOTE 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for The Queen
Elizabeth Centre (QEC) for the period ending 30 June 2015. The purpose of the report is to provide users with
information about The Queen Elizabeth Centre’ stewardship of resources entrusted to it.
(a) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance
with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS’s) which include
interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner
consistent with the requirements of AASB101 Presentation of Financial Statements.
The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department
of Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister for Finance.
The Queen Elizabeth Centre is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs
applicable to “not-for-profit” Health Services under the AAS’s.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Queen Elizabeth Centre on 28th August
2015.
(b) Basis of Accounting Preparation and Measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions
or other events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2015 and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2014.
The going concern basis was used to prepare the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of QEC.
The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when
they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those items, that is they are recognised in the reporting
period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for:
 non-current physical assets, which subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a revalued amount being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
impairment losses. Revaluations are made and are re-assessed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair values;
 the fair value of assets other than land is generally based on their depreciated replacement value.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
professional judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future
periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of
AASs that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:
 the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (Note 1(j))
 superannuation expense (Note 1(f))
 assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave
claims, future salary movements and future discount rates (Note 1(f))
Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, QEC determines the policies and procedures for both
recurring fair value measurements such as property, plant and equipment, investment properties and financial
instruments, and for non-recurring fair value measurements such as non-financial physical assets held for sale, in
accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and relevant FRDs.

Page 42

2015 QEC Annual Report
Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2015

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
 Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
 Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
 Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, QEC has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
In addition, QEC determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is QEC’s independent valuation agency.
QEC, in conjunction with VGV monitors the changes in the fair value of each asset and liability through relevant
data sources top determine whether revaluation is required.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision, and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgements and
assumptions made by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on the financial statements
and estimates, with a risk of material adjustments in the subsequent reporting period, relate to:
 the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1(j) );
 superannuation expense (refer to note1(f)); and
 actuarial assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns
of leave claims, future salary movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(f)).
(c) Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of the Queen Elizabeth Centre.
Its principal address is:
53 Thomas Street
Noble Park Victoria 3174
A description of the nature of QEC’s operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations,
which does not form part of these financial statements.
Objectives and funding
QEC’s overall objective is to provide children with the best start in life, as well as improve the quality of life to
Victorians.
QEC is predominantly funded by accrual based grant funding for the provision of outputs.
(d) Scope and Presentation of Financial Statements
Fund Accounting
The QEC operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital
Funds. The QEC Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent capital donations and receipts from fundraising activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.
Comprehensive Operating Statement
The comprehensive operating statement includes the subtotal entitled ‘net result before capital & specific items’
to enhance the understanding of the financial performance of QEC. This subtotal reports the result excluding
items such as capital grants, assets received or provided free of charge, depreciation, expenditure using capital
purpose income and items of an unusual nature and amount such as specific income and expenses. The exclusion
of these items is made to enhance matching of income and expenses so as to facilitate the comparability and
consistency of results between years and Victorian Public Health Services. The ‘net result before capital & specific
items’ is used by the management of QEC, the Department of Health and Human Services and the Victorian
Government to measure the ongoing operating performance of Health Services.
Capital and specific items, which are excluded from this sub-total, comprise:
 Capital purpose income, which comprises all tied grants, donations and bequests received for the purpose
of acquiring non-current assets, such as capital works, plant and equipment or intangible assets.
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Consequently the recognition of revenue as capital purpose income is based on the intention of the
provider of the revenue at the time the revenue is provided.
 Specific income/expense, comprises the following items, where material:
- Non-current asset revaluation increments/decrements.
 Depreciation and amortisation, as described in Note 1 (g).
 Fund Accounting
 impairment of financial and non-financial assets, includes all impairment losses (and reversal of previous
impairment losses), which have been recognised in accordance with Notes 1 (i)
 Expenditure using capital purpose income, comprises expenditure which either falls below the asset
capitalisation threshold or doesn’t meet asset recognition criteria and therefore does not result in the
recognition of an asset in the balance sheet, where funding for that expenditure is from capital purpose
income.
‘Other economic flows; are changes arising from market remeasurements. They include:
 gains and losses from disposals of non-financial assets;
 revaluations and impairments of non-financial physical and intangible assets;
 remeasurement arising from defined benefit superannuation plans;
 fair value changes of financial instruments.
Balance Sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current or non-current (non-current being those assets or liabilities
expected to be recovered/settled more than 12 months after reporting period), are disclosed in the notes where
relevant.
The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs.
Statement of Changes in Equity
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of each non-owner and owner changes in equity from
opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period.
It also shows separately changes due to amounts recognised in the comprehensive result and amounts recognised
in other comprehensive income.
Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating activities, investing activities, or
financial activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB107 Statement of Cash Flows.
Rounding
All amounts shown in the Financial Statements are expressed to the nearest dollar.
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.
(e) Income from Transactions
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Queen Elizabeth Centre and the income can be reliably measured at
fair value. Unearned income at reporting date is reported as income received in advance. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances, duties and taxes.
Government Grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income (other than
contributions by owners) are recognised as income when QEC gains control of the underlying assets irrespective
of whether conditions are imposed on the QEC’s use of the contributions.
Contributions are deferred as income in advance when the QEC has a present obligation to repay them and the
present obligation can be reliably measured.
Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. If donations are for a special purpose, they may
be appropriated to a surplus, such as specific restricted purpose surplus.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial
asset, which allocates interest over the relevant period.
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(f) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
Employee Expenses
Employee expenses include:
 wages and salaries;
 annual leave;
 sick leave;
 long service leave; and
 superannuation expenses which are reported differently depending upon whether employees are
members of defined benefit or defined contribution plans.
Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the
employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during
the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amount charged to the comprehensive operating statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans
represents the contributions made by QEC to the superannuation plans in respect of the services of current QEC
staff during the reporting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules
of each plan, and are based upon actuarial advice.
Employees of the QEC are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the QEC contributes to both the
defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan(s) provide benefits based on years of
service and final average salary.
The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by the QEC are
disclosed in note 13.
(g) Depreciation
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets that have finite
useful lives are depreciated (i.e. excludes land assets held for sale). Depreciation begins when the asset is available
for use, which is when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a manner
intended by management.
Intangible produced assets with finite lives are depreciated as an expense from transactions on a systematic basis
over the asset’s useful life. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the
asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method for all assets are reviewed at least annually, and adjustments made where
appropriate. This depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of Health and Human Services. Assets with
a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets so as to allocate
their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives.
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non-current assets on which the depreciation and
amortisation charges are based:

Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Computers & Communication
Motor Vehicles

2015
50 to 55 years
5 to 10 years
3 to 16 years
4 to 5 years

2014
50 to 55 years
5 to 10 years
3 to 16 years
4 to 5 years

Intangible produced assets with finite lives are depreciated as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset’s
useful life.
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Amortisation
Amortisation is allocated to intangible non-produced assets with finite useful lives on a systematic (typically
straight-line) basis over the asset’s useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
The consumption of intangible non-produced assets with finite useful lives is classified as amortisation.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each annual reporting period. In addition, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there are indicators that the intangible asset concerned is impaired. If so, the asset concerned
is tested as to whether its carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually or whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. The useful lives of intangible assets that are not being
amortised are reviewed each period to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support an
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. In addition, the QEC tests all intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount for each asset with its carrying amount:
•
annually; and
•
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired
Any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss.
Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and
include :
Supplies and Consumables
Supplies and services costs are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred.
(h) Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income measures the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result
from transactions.
Net gain on disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal and is the difference
between the proceeds and the carrying value of the asset at the time.
(i)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of the QEC’s activities, certain financial
assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities
do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. For example,
statutory receivables arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition of financial instruments as
they do not arise under contract.
Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a distinction is made between those financial assets and financial
liabilities that meet the definition of financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not.
The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.
Categories of non-derivative financial instruments
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted
on an active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.
Loans and receivables category includes cash and deposits (refer to Note 1(j), term deposits with maturity greater
than three months, trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.
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Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial instrument assets are those designated as available-for-sale or not classified in any other
category of financial instrument asset. Such assets are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’
until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is included in net result for the period. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 16.
(j) Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less, which are held for the
purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are
included as liabilities on the balance sheet.
Receivables
Receivables consist of:
contractual receivables, which includes mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third
parties, accrued investment income, and finance lease receivables; and
statutory receivables, which includes predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and
Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) input tax credits recoverable.
Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables.
Statutory receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment),
but are not classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a contract.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less any accumulated impairment.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of
recognition. Collectability of debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible
are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may
not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified.
Investments and other financial assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Investments are classified in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
held-to-maturity;
loans and receivables; and
available-for-sale financial assets.
The QEC classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its other financial assets at initial
recognition.
QEC assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss are subject to annual review for
impairment.
Property, Plant and Equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair
value at the date of acquisition.
More details about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of non-financial physical
assets are discussed in Note 8 Property, plant and equipment.
The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under finance lease is measured at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.
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Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.
Plant, equipment and vehicles are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for fair
value because of the short lives of the assets concerned.
Leasehold improvements
The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining
term of the lease or the estimated useful life to the improvements.
Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets
Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103F Non-current
physical assets. This revaluation process normally occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset’s
Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material
changes in values. Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim
revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or
decrements arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ and are credited directly in equity to the
asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect
of that same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income
in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists
in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against
one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes.
Revaluation surplus is not normally transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.
In accordance with FRD 103F, QEC non-current physical assets were assessed to determine whether revaluation
of the non-current physical assets was required.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance such as computer software
and development costs.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial
acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to QEC.
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period on which it is incurred.
When the recognition criteria in AASB 138 Intangible Assets are met, internally generated intangible assets are
recognised and measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment.
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following are demonstrated:
a. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
b. an intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
c. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
d. the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
e.
the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and
f.
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.
Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of services or that
part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.
Disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assets is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement. Refer
to note 8 – ‘Property Plant & Equipment’.
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Impairment of non-financial assets
Intangible assets with indefinite lives (and intangible assets not yet available for use) are tested annually for
impairment (as described below) and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
All other non-financial assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment.
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds
their possible recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference
is written-off as an expense except to the extent that the write-down can be debited to an asset revaluation
surplus amount applicable to that same class of asset.
If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. This
reversal of the impairment loss occurs only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised in prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the
use of the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable amount
for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell.
Recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows is measured at the higher of the present
value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• QEC retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
• QEC has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
Where QEC has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the QEC’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period QEC assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial asset is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through
profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.
Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Bad debts considered as written off and
allowances for doubtful receivables are expensed. Bad debt written off by mutual consent and the allowance for
doubtful debts are classified as ‘other comprehensive income’ in the net result.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments includes:
• realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss or held-for-trading;
• impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost; and
• disposals of financial assets and derecognition of financial liabilities.
(k) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:
 contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Health Service prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and
arise when the Health Service becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of
those goods and services. The normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually Net 30 days.
 statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
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Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value, and then
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual
payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when QEC has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable,
and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a
third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Employee Benefits
This provision arises for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long
service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.
Wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and accrued days off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating sick leave are all
recognised in the provision for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’, because QEC does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave are measured at :

Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or

Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Long service leave (LSL)
Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health
service does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:

Undiscounted value – if the health service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; and

Present value – if the health service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL liability is
measured at present value.
Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction,
except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then recognised
as an other economic flow.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an
employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.
QEC recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
Employee benefit on-costs
Employee benefit on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised together
with provisions for employee benefits.
Superannuation liabilities
The Queen Elizabeth Centre does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the
superannuation plan because the Queen Elizabeth Centre has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised as an expense in the consolidated comprehensive operating statement.
(l) Equity
Contributed capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned
Public Sector Entities and FRD 119A Contributions by Owners, appropriations for additions to the net asset base
have been designated as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions to or
distributions by owners that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital.
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current
physical assets.
Financial asset available-for-sale revaluation surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. Where a
revalued financial asset is sold that portion of the surplus which relates to that financial asset is effectively realised,
and is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement. Where a revalued financial asset is impaired that
portion of the surplus which relates to that financial asset is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement.
Specific restricted purpose surplus
A specific restricted purpose surplus is established where QEC has possession or title to the funds but has no
discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or condition underlying the funds received.
(m) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These
commitments are disclosed by way of a note (refer to note 17) at their nominal value and are inclusive of the GST
payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the
net present values of significant individual projects are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as
commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.
(n) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case, the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as an operating cash
flow.
Commitments for expenditure and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
(o) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Certain new Australian accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2015
reporting period. DTF assesses the impact of all these new standards and advises QEC of their applicability and
early adoption where applicable.
As at 30 June 2015, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by the AASB but were not yet
effective. They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the
stated operative dates as detailed in the table below. QEC has not and does not intend to adopt these standards
early.
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Standard/
Interpretation

Summary

AASB 9 Financial
Instruments

The key changes introduced by AASB 9
include the simplified requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets, a new hedging accounting model and a
revised impairment loss model to recognise
impairment losses earlier, as opposed to the
current approach that recognises impairment
only when incurred.

AASB 2014-1
Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards [Part E
Financial
Instruments]
AASB 2014-4
Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards –
Clarification of
Acceptable
Methods of
Depreciation and
Amortisation
[AASB 116 &
AASB 138]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB's
decision to defer the mandatory application
date of AASB 9 to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018; as a
consequence of Chapter 6; and to amend
reduced disclosure requirements.

1 January 2018

Amends AASB 116 and AASB 138 to:
establish the principle for the basis of
depreciation and amortisation as being the
expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits of an asset;
clarify that the use of revenue-based methods
to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not
appropriate because revenue generated by an
activity that includes the use of an asset
generally reflects factors other than the
consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in the asset; and clarify that
revenue is generally presumed to be an
inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in an intangible asset. This
presumption, however, can be rebutted in
certain limited circumstances.
The Amendments extend the scope of AASB
124 Related Party Disclosures to not for
profit public sector entities. A guidance has
been included to assist the application of the
Standard by not for profit public sector
entities.

1 January 2016

The assessment has indicated that
there is no expected impact as the
revenue based method is not used
for depreciation and amortisation.

1 Jan 2016

The amending standard will result
in extended disclosures on the
entity’s key management personnel
and the related party transactions.

AASB 2015-6
Amendments to
Australian
Accounting
Standards –
Extending Related
Party Disclosures
to Not for Profit
Public Sector
Entities

Applicable for
Annual
reporting
periods
beginning on
1 January 2018

Impact on public sector entity
financial statements

The assessment has identified that
the financial impact of available for
sale assets will now be reported
through other comprehensive
income and no longer to the profit
and loss.
While the preliminary assessment
has not identified any material
impact arising from AASB9, it will
continue to be assessed.
This amending standard will defer
the application period of AASB9 to
the 2018-19 reporting period in
accordance with the transition
requirements.

In addition to the new standards above, the ASSB has issued a list of amending standards that are no effective for the 2014-15 reporting period.
In general, these amending standards include editorial and references changes that are expected to have insignificant impacts on public sector
reporting.
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Note 2: Analysis of revenue by source

Government Grants

2015

2014

$

$

9,317,136

9,038,006

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health & Human Services
- Insurance
Other Revenue from Operating Activities
Total Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest and Dividends

6,394

6,030

582,165

541,902

9,905,695

9,585,938

143,621

249,761

Donations and Bequests
Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Total Revenue

91,834

72,728

235,455

322,489

10,141,150

9,908,427

Indirect contributions by Department of Health (1 July 2014 - 31 Dec 2014) / Department of Health and Human Service (1 Jan 2015- 30 June 2015)
Department of Health /Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of QEC. These amounts have been brought account in determining the
operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.
Note 2a Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non financial assets

2015

2014

$

$

Proceeds from Disposal of non financial assets
Motor Vehicle

9,546

118,743

Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non Current Assets

9,546

118,743

Less Written Down Value of Non Current Assets Sold
Motor Vehicle
Total Written Down Value of Non Current Assets Sold

(3,701)

(66,417)

(3,701)

(66,417)

5,845

52,326

Net Gain/(loss) on Disposal of Non Financial Assets

Note 3: Analysis of Expenses by Source

2015
$

Employee Expenses
Supplies & Consumables
Other Expenses
Total Expenditure from Operating Activities
Depreciation & Amortisation (refer to note 4)
Total Other Expenses
Total Expenses

2014
$

7,723,678

7,353,770

198,383

162,648

1,825,339

1,885,459

9,747,400

9,401,877

336,232

307,530

336,232

307,530

10,083,632

9,709,407

Note 4: Depreciation and Amortisation
2015

2014

Depreciation

$

$

Buildings

130,133

126,992

Motor Vehicles

108,176

118,444

Computers, Comms, Furniture & other equipment
Total Depreciation (refer Note 8)

38,302

43,371

276,611

288,807

Amortisation
Computer Software
Total Amortisation (refer Note 8)
Total Depreciation and Amortisation

59,621

18,723

59,621

18,723

336,232

307,530
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Note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents
A reconciliation of the amounts classified as cash and cash equivalents for the balance sheet purposes and cash flow statement purposes is as follows:
2015

2014

$

$

Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Term Deposits
Total

1,900

1,800

157,064

2,486,778

1,259,263

1,932,888

1,418,227

4,421,466

Represented by:
Cash for health service operations
Total

1,418,227

4,421,466

1,418,227

4,421,466

2015

2014

$

$

Note 6: Receivables

CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Debtors

29,557

Other

19,325

-

128

8,135

49,010

320,062

Accrued Investment Income

311,927

Statutory
GST Receivable
Total Current Receivables

84,526

43,459

133,536

363,521

NON CURRENT
Statutory
Accrued Revenue - DHHS Long Service Leave

301,555

340,704

Total Non-Current Receivables

301,555

340,704

Total Receivables

435,091

704,225

Note 6a Allowance for Doubtful Debts
At 30 June 2015 there is no doubtful debt provision, due to the low level of risk for receivables.
At 30 June 2014 there is no doubtful debt provision, due to the low level of risk for receivables.
There have been no bad debts during the financial year.
Note 6b Ageing analysis of receivables
Please refer to note 16 (c ) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables
Note 6c Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
Please refer to note 16 (c ) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables

Note 7: Investment and Financial Assets
2015

2014

$

$

Non Current
Available for Sale
Managed Investment Schemes

3,096,926

-

Total Non Current

3,096,926

-

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

3,096,926

-

Managed Investment Scheme with Victorian Funds Management Corporation in compliance with SD 4.5.6.
Note 7a Ageing analyis of investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 16 (c ) for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets.
Note 7b Nature and extent of risk arising from investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 16 (c ) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from investments and other financial assets.
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Note 8: Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
2015

2014

$

$

Land
Crown Land at valuation
Total Land

2,902,000

2,902,000

2,902,000

2,902,000

3,818,000

3,818,000

233,000

233,000

Buildings
Buildings at valuation
Improvements at valuation
Building Improvements at Cost

3,578

Less Accumulated depreciation

-

(130,133)

Total Buildings

3,924,445

4,051,000

Equipment
Equipment at fair value
Less Accumulated depreciation
Total Equipment

409,927

362,922

(299,180)

(260,879)

110,747

102,043

Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicles at fair value
Less Accumulated depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles
Work In Progress
TOTAL

690,264

684,853

(382,084)

(302,792)

308,180

382,061

467,248

-

7,712,620

7,437,104

Revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.

(b) Reconciliations of the Carrying Amounts of each Class of Assets
Crown

Buildings

Equipment

Land
$
Balance at 1 July 2013

$

Progress
$

Total

$

$

4,386,807

321,774

346,347

-

6,848,146

220,575

-

292,649

(66,417)

-

(66,417)

Additions

-

43,369

28,705

-

-

-

Reclassification of fixtures & plant equipment to buildings

-

205,064

1,108,782

Depreciation (refer Note 4)
Balance at 30 June 2014

Work in

1,793,218

Disposals
Revaluation Increments

Motor
Vehicles

-

(457,248)
(126,992)

(205,064)
(43,371)

$

-

-

-

-

-

651,534

(118,444)

-

2,902,000

4,051,000

102,043

382,061

-

7,437,104

37,996

467,248

555,828

Additions

-

3,578

47,006

Disposals

-

-

-

Reclassification of fixtures & planet equipment to buildings

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluation Increments

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation (refer Note 4)

-

Balance at 30 June 2015

2,902,000

(130,133)
3,924,445

(38,302)
110,747

(3,701)

(108,176)
308,180

-

467,248

(288,807)

(3,701)
(276,611)
7,712,620

Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of the QEC's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation,
which confirms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments.
The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
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(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2015
Carrying

Fair value measured at end of reporting
period using:

Amount
30 June 2015

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

$

$

$

Land at Fair value
Specialised land - 53 Thomas Street Noble Park

2,902,000

-

-

2,902,000

3,924,445

-

-

3,924,445

Equipment

110,747

-

-

110,747

Vehicles

308,180

-

-

308,180

467,248

-

-

467,248

7,712,620

-

-

7,712,620

Buildings at Fair value
Specialised buildings & improvements - 53 Thomas Street Noble Park
Plant & Equipment at Fair value

Work In Progress
Noble Park renovations
Total

Carrying

Fair value measured at end of reporting
period using:

Amount
30 June 2014

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

$

$

$

Land at Fair value
Specialised land - 53 Thomas Street Noble Park

2,902,000

-

-

2,902,000

4,051,000

-

-

4,051,000

Equipment

102,043

-

-

102,043

Vehicles

382,061

-

-

382,061

7,437,104

-

-

7,437,104

Buildings at Fair value
Specialised buildings & improvements - 53 Thomas Street Noble Park

Plant & Equipment at Fair value

Total
Specialised land & specialised buildings

The market approach is also used for specialised land and specialised buildings although is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect
the specialised nature of assets being valued. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3
under the market based direct comparison approach.
The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer's assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is equally applicable to
market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of
the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible.
As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land has been classified as Level 3 assets.
For QEC, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation.
As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.
An independent valuation of the QEC’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria.
The valuation was performed using the market approach adjusted for CSO. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
Vehicles
QEC acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life.
The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by QEC who set relevant depreciation rates (depreciated cost) during use the reflect the comsumption of
the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ materially from the carrying value.
Plant & equipment
Plant and equipment is held at carrying value (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely
sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value.
Unless there is market evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost,
it is considered unlikely that depreciated replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying value.
There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2015.
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
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Plant &
(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value 2015

Land

Opening balance

Work in

Equipment

Buildings

Progress

Vehicles

$
2,902,000

$
4,051,000

$
102,043

$
382,061

Total

$
-

$
7,437,104

Purchases / (Sales)

-

3,578

47,006

34,295

467,248

552,127

Transfers in / (out) of Level 3

-

-

-

-

-

-

Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation

-

- Impairment loss
Subtotal

(130,133)

(38,302)

(108,176)

-

(276,611)

2,902,000

3,924,445

110,747

308,180

467,248

7,712,620

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,902,000

3,924,445

110,747

308,180

467,248

7,712,620

-

-

-

-

-

Items recognised in other comprehensive income

-

- Revaluations
Subtotal
Closing Balance
Unrealised gains / (losses) on non-financial assets

2,902,000

3,924,445

110,747

308,180

467,248

7,712,620

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
(e) Description of significant inputs to Level 3 valuations:
Valuation
technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Range

Sensitivity of fair value measurement to

(weighted

changes in significant unobservable inputs

average)
Specialised land
Land - 53 Thomas Street, Noble Park

Market
approach

Community Service Obligation

20%

(CSO) adjustment

A significant increase or decrease in the CSO
adjustment would result in a significantly (lower) /
higher fair value.

Specialised buildings
Buildings - 53 Thomas Street, Noble Park
Depreciated
replacement
cost

Direct cost per square metre

A significant increase or decrease in direct cost
$300 m2

per square metre adjustment would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly

Plant & equipment

Depreciated

Useful life of specialised buildings

30 - 60 years

higher or lower valuation.

Cost per unit

$0 - $38,545

A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit

($1,500)

would result in a significantly higher or lower fair

replacement
cost (DRC)

value.
Useful life of PPE

5 to 10 years
A significant increase or decrease in estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower fair value.

Motor Vehicles

Depreciated

Cost per unit

replacement

$0 - $33,023

A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit

($13,175)

would result in a significantly higher or lower fair

cost (DRC)

value.
Useful life of Vehicles

3 to 5 years
A significant increase or decrease in estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower fair value.

Note 9: Intangible Assets
2015

2014

Intangible Assets at Cost

$

$

Intangible Assets (Software)

322,530

305,923

Less Accumulated amortisation
Total Intangible Assets

(128,536)
193,994

(68,914)
237,009

2015 QEC Annual Report

Page 57

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2015

Reconciliation of the Carrying Amounts of Intangible Assets
Software
Development

Total

$

$

Balance at 1 July 2013

180,012

180,012

Additions

127,745

127,745

Write-off website costs

(52,025)

(52,025)

Amortisation (refer Note 4)

(18,723)

Balance at 30 June 2014

237,009

Additions
Write-off website costs
Amortisation (refer Note 4)
Balance at 30 June 2015

(18,723)
237,009

-

-

16,607

16,607

(59,622)

(59,622)

193,994

193,994

$

$

Note 10: Payables
CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Creditors

312,807

194,978

Others

81,740

-

Accrued Expenses

49,334

10,821

443,881

205,799

Statutory
Withholding Taxes Payable

80,714

83,448

Superannuation Payable

17,668

76,745

Total Payables

Note 11: Revenue Received in Advance
Commitments for expenditure no later than one year
Total

98,382

160,193

542,263

365,992

2015

2014

$

$
20,073

271,992

20,073

271,992

Note 12: Provisions
2015

2014

Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (i)
Unpaid wages
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)

189,014

169,025

-

-

627,406

545,113

-

-

Annual Leave
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Long Service Leave
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)

181,270

210,277

- Unconditional and expected to be settled after wholly 12 months (iii)

543,812

630,831

1,541,502

1,555,246

Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)

61,924

71,833

- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)

65,842

76,378

Total Current Provisions

127,766

148,211

1,669,268

1,703,457

224,518

106,896

Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (i)
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs (ii)
Total Non-Current

28,534

12,943

253,052

119,839

Notes :
(i) Employee benefits consist of annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees. On-costs such as payroll tax and worker's compensation insurance
are not employee benefits and are reflected as a separate provision
(ii) The amounts disclosed are at nominal values
(iii) The amounts disclosed are at present values
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(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-costs

2015

2014

$

$
169,025

Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Accrued wages and salaries

189,014

Annual Leave entitlements

627,406

591,486

Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlement

852,848

942,946

1,669,268

1,703,457

Total Current
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Conditional Long Service Leave entitlements
Total Non-Current
(b) Movement in Long Service Leave:

253,052

119,839

253,052

119,839

2015

2014

$
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

$

1,062,785

1,006,416

Provision made during the year

264,266

197,791

Settlement made during the year

(221,151)

(141,422)

Balance at end of the reporting period

1,105,900

1,062,785

Note 13: Superannuation

Employees of the QEC are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the Health Services contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined
benefit plan(s) provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
QEC does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its
employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s defined benefits liabilities in
its disclosure for administered items.
However superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of QEC.
The name, details and amounts expense in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by QEC are as follows:

Paid Contribution for the Year

Contribution Outstanding at

2015

2014

2015

2014

$

$

$

$

Defined Benefit plans (i)
- First State Super

19,570

2,137

23,919

2,035

- First State Super

340,254

27,978

346,984

28,810

- HESTA

184,230

18,237

152,960

13,651

- Others

42,670

3,273

38,364

Defined Contribution plans

Total

586,724

51,625

562,227

3,527
48,023

Note 14: Equity & Reserves
2015

2014

$

$

(a) Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve (i)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Revaluation increment - land
Revaluation decrement - buildings
Balance at the end of the Reporting Period

4,781,107

4,129,573

-

1,108,782

-

(457,248)

4,781,107

4,781,107

- Land

2,902,000

2,902,000

- Buildings

1,874,107

1,874,107

Represented by:

- Equipment

5,000

5,000

4,781,107

4,781,107

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

-

47,492

Net Result for the year

-

(47,492)

Balance at the end of the Reporting Period

-

-

990,000

990,000

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Net movement in the year
Balance at the end of the Reporting Period
Total Reserves

-

-

990,000

990,000

5,771,107

5,771,107

(i) The property, plant and equipment asset revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant & equipment.
(ii) The financial assets available for sale reserve arises on the revaluation of available for sale financial assets. Where a revalued financial asset is sold, that
portion of the reserve which relates to the financial asset, and is effectively realised, is recognised in the net result.
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(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

4,894,538

Net movement in the year
Balance at the end of the Reporting Period

4,894,538

-

-

4,894,538

4,894,538

(c) Accumulated Deficits
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

(327,121)

Net Result for the year
Balance at the end of the Reporting Period
(d) Total Equity at the end of Financial Year

(655,939)

63,363

328,818

(263,758)
10,401,887

(327,121)
10,338,524

Note 15: Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities
2015

2014

$

$

Net Result for the Year

63,363

328,818

Net gain from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

(5,845)

(52,326)

Write-off intangibles

-

52,025

336,232

307,530

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables

269,134

(166,905)

(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets

(29,685)

Increase/(Decrease) in payables

176,271

Depreciation and Amortisation
Changes in assets and liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Revenue Received in Advance
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

(251,919)

870
(115,617)

99,024
656,575

(63,994)
290,401

Note 16: Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Queen Elizabeth Centre's principal financial instruments comprise of:
- cash assets
- term deposits
- receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
- managed Investment Schemes
- payables (excluding statutory payables)
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the
financial statements.
The Queen Elizabeth Centre's main financial risks include, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Queen Elizabeth centre manages these
financial risks in accordance with its financial risk management policies.
The Queen Elizabeth Centre uses different methods to measure and manage different risks to which it is exposed.
Primary responsibility for the identification and management of financial risks rests with the finance and audit committee of the Queen Elizabeth Centre.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudently manage the Queen Elizabeth Centre's financial risks within the government policy
parameters.
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Details of each category of financial instrument held by the Queen Elizabeth Centre are disclosed in the table below.

Financial Assets

Category

Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer Note 5)

Cash

Carrying

Carrying

Amount

Amount

2015

2014

$

$

1,418,227

4,421,466

Trade Debtors (refer Note 6)

Loans and Receivables

29,557

311,927

Other Receivables (refer Note 6)

Loans and Receivables

19,453

8,135

Managed Investment Schemes (refer Note 7)

Available for Sale
Total Financial Assets (i)

3,096,926

-

4,564,163

4,741,528

Financial Liabilities
Current Payables (refer Note 10)

Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Total Financial Liabilities (ii)

443,881

205,799

443,881

205,799

(i) The total amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit recoverable)
(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes payable)

Net holding

Interest &

Fee income /

gain /(loss)

dividend income

(expense)

Impairment loss

Total

$

$

/ (expense)
$

$

$

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)

-

143,621

-

-

143,621

Total Financial Assets

-

143,621

-

-

143,621

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost (ii)

-

-

-

-

-

Total Financial Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)
Available for sale investments (i)
Total Financial Assets

-

90,973

29,980

158,788

29,980

249,761

90,973
188,768

-

-

279,741

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost (ii)

-

-

-

-

-

Total Financial Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, receivables and available for sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the movement in the fair value of
the asset, interest revenue, and minus any impairment recognised in the net result;
(ii) For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest expense,
arising from the revaluation of financial liabilities measured at amortised costs. We have no foreign currency exposure.

(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial asset of QEC, which comprise cash and deposits, and non-statutory receivables. QEC's exposure to credit risk
arises from the potential default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to QEC. Credit risk is measured at fair value
Credit risk associated with QEC's contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government. For debtors other than the
Government, it is QEC's policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings of a minimum Triple B rating.
In addition, the QEC does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that are on fixed interest,
except cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for debtors, QEC's policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents QEC's
maximum exposure to credit risk.
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Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Financial

Other

Institutions

(minimum

(AAA credit

BBB credit

rating)

rating)

$

$

Total

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)

1,200,739

$

217,488

1,418,227

Trade Debtors

-

29,557

29,557

Managed Investment Schemes

-

3,096,926

3,096,926

Other Receivables (ii)

-

19,453

19,453

1,200,739

3,363,424

4,564,163

Cash and Cash Equivalents

-

4,421,466

4,421,466

Trade Debtors

-

311,927

311,927

Other Receivables (ii)

-

8,135

8,135

Total Financial Assets

-

4,741,528

4,741,528

Total Financial Assets
2014
Financial Assets

(i) Treasury Corporation of Victoria has AAA rating.
(ii) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable).
Ageing analysis of Financial Assets

2015

Past Due But Not Impaired

Consol'd

Not Past Due

Carrying

and Not

Less than 1

Amount

Impaired

month

$

$

$

1-3 month

3 months -

Impaired
1-5 Years

Financial

1 Year
$

Assets

$

$

$

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,418,227

1,418,227

-

-

-

-

-

Available for Sale

3,096,926

3,096,926

-

-

-

-

-

- Trade Debtors

29,557

29,557

24,897

4,385

275

-

-

- Other Receivables

19,453

19,453

-

-

-

-

-

4,564,163

4,564,163

24,897

4,385

275

-

-

$

$

Loans and Receivables

Total Financial Assets
2014

$

$

$

$

$

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

4,421,466

4,421,466

-

-

-

-

-

311,927

311,927

257,722

30,785

23,420

-

-

8,135

8,135

-

-

-

-

-

4,741,528

4,741,528

257,722

30,785

23,420

-

-

Loans and Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
Total Financial Assets

Contractual financial assets that are either past due or impaired
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
Currently QEC does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to its financial assets.
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and they are stated at their carrying
amounts as indicated. The ageing analysis table above discloses the ageing only of contractual financial sets that are past due but not impaired.

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that QEC would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. QEC operates under the Government's fair
payments policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, making payments within 30 days from the date of resolution.
QEC maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet.
The Queen Elizabeth Centre manages liquidity risk by maintaining some investments at call and by budgeting and projecting cash flows to meet contractual commitments.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Queen Elizabeth Centre's financial liabilities.
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Maturity analysis of Financial Liabilities
Maturity Dates
Carrying

Nominal

Less than

1-3

3 months -

1-5

Amount

Amount

1 Month

Months

1 Year

Years

$

$

$

$

$

$

2015
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Trade Creditors

312,807

312,807

229,499

Other (i)

131,074

131,074

-

443,881

443,881

194,978

194,978

10,821

10,821

-

205,799

205,799

192,075

Total Financial Liabilities

229,499

79,497

3,811

-

-

-

-

79,497

3,811

-

2014
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Trade Creditors
Other (i)
Total Financial Liabilities

192,075

2,845

58

2,845

-

-

-

58

-

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excluded the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable).

(e) Market Risk
The Queen Elizabeth Centre's exposure to market risk is mainly through interest rate risks.
The Queen Elizabeth Centre assess the currency risk and other prices as insignificant, because the Queen Elizabeth Centre undertakes all transactions in Australian dollars and
have no financial assets or financial liabilities subject to changes due to volatility in the market. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are
disclosed as follows.
Policy on Managing the Interest Rate Risk
The objective of managing market risk is to minimise negative impacts on financial assets value due to the volatility of variables, mainly due to changes in the interest rates.
QEC has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks through its cash and deposits, terms deposits that are at floating rates
Interest Rate Exposure and Analysis of Financial Assets
Interest Rate Exposure

Average
Effective

Carrying

Fixed

Variable

Non Interest

Interest Rate

Amount

Interest Rate

Interest rate

Bearing

%

$

$

$

$

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

3.05

1,418,227

1,200,739

215,588

1,900

Trade Debtors (i)

0.00

29,557

-

-

29,557

Managed Investment Schemes

0.00

3,096,926

-

-

3,096,926

Other Receivables

0.00

19,453

-

-

19,543

4,564,163

1,200,739

215,588

3,147,926

Total Financial Assets
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

3.45

4,421,466

1,932,888

2,486,778

1,800

Trade Debtors (i)

0.0

311,927

-

-

311,927

Managed Investment Schemes

0.00

-

-

-

-

Other Receivables

0.0

8,135

-

-

8,135

4,741,528

1,932,888

2,486,778

321,862

Total Financial Assets
There is no interest rate exposure on financial liabilities.

(i) The carrying amount exclude types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable)
Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts and managements' knowledge and experience of the financial market, the Queen Elizabeth
Centre believe the following movements are "reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates are sourced from the Reserve Bank of Australia)
The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument held by Queen Elizabeth Centre at year end as presented
to key management personnel, if changes in the relevant risk occur.
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Sensitivity Analysis on the Return, to Interest Rate Exposure
Interest Rate Risk

Carrying
Amount
2015

$

+1%

-1%
Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

$

$

$

$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)

1,418,227

(14,182)

(14,182)

14,182

14,182

Managed Investment Schemes

3,096,926

(30,969)

(30,969)

30,969

30,969

4,421,466

(44,215)

(44,215)

44,215

44,215

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)

(i) Sensitivity of cash and cash equivalents to a -1% movement in rates: i.e. (4,515,153 x -1% = -$45,152 and 3,096,926 x -1% = -$30,969). Similarly for a +1% movement the
(f) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows;
Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market prices;
Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and
Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
unobservable market inputs.
QEC considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements to be a fair
approximation of their fair values, because of the short term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in
full.
The following table shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the same as the carrying amounts.

Comparison between carrying amount and fair value

Carrying

Carrying

Fair Value

Amount
2015
$

2015

Amount
2014

$

$

Fair Value
2014
$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

1,418,227

1,418,227

4,421,466

4,421,456

-

-

-

-

29,557

29,557

311,927

311,927

Managed Investment Schemes
Loans and Receivables
- Trade debtors
- Other receivables
Total Financial Assets

19,453

19,453

8,135

8,135

1,467,237

1,467,237

4,741,528

4,741,518

194,978

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
312,807

312,807

194,978

Others

Trade Creditors

81,740

81,740

-

-

Accrued Expenses

49,334

49,334

10,821

10,821

443,881

443,881

205,799

205,799

Total Financial Liabilities

Carrying

Financial assets measured at fair value

Amount as at

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:

30 June

2015
$

Level 1 *

Level 2 *

Level 3 *

$

$

$

Fiancial assets at fair value through profit & loss
- Managed Investment Schemes
Total Financial Assets

3,096,926

3,096,926

-

-

3,096,926

3,096,926

-

-

* There have been no transfer between levels during the period.
There is no financial assets measured at fair value through profit & loss in June 2014.
The investment in the managed investment scheme was made on 30 June 2015. There have been no other investment during the year.
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Note 17: Commitments for Expenditure
2015

2014

Capital expenditure commitments

$

$

Less than 1 year

262,300

-

Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years

218,300

-

Note 18: Contingent Assets and Liabilities
There were no contingent assets for the Queen Elizabeth Centre as at 30 June 2015
There were no contingent assets for the Queen Elizabeth Centre as at 30 June 2014
There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2015
There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014
Note 19: Segment Reporting
Business Segment

Services

Early Parenting Services

Provider of Early Parenting Services and Education

Geographical Segment
The Queen Elizabeth Centre operates predominantly in Noble Park and South Eastern Victoria. More than 90% of revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities

Note 20: Responsible Persons and Executive Officer Disclosures
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994,
the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
Period

Note 20a Responsible Persons Disclosures
Responsible Ministers
The Honourable David Davis MLC, Minister for Health and Minister for Ageing

01/07/2014 - 3/12/2014

The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MP, Minister for Mental Health

01/07/2014 - 3/12/2014

The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MP, Minister for Community Services

01/07/2014 - 3/12/2014

The Honourable Jill Hennessy MLA, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services

04/12/2015 - 30/06/2015

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Mental Health

04/12/2015 - 30/06/2015

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing

04/12/2015 - 30/06/2015

The Honourable Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Families and Children

04/12/2014 - 30/06/2015

Board Members
The names of persons who were board members at any time during the financial year
Mr Phillip Davies - (President until June 2015)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms Selina Lightfoot - (Vice President from 05/12/2013)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms Mary Sayers - (Vice President from 05/12/2013)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms Kym Forrest

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Assoc Prof Campbell Paul

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms Karen Wells

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms Sharon Beaumont

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms Vicki Cowling (Resigned 14/09/2014)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Mr Warwick Spargo

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Ms June McLoughlin

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Accountable Officer
Ms Athina Georgiou - Chief Executive Officer
The position for the President of the board is currently vacant.
Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of responsible persons and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the table below.
Base remuneration is shown in the third and fourth columns, excluding bonus payments.
Total Remuneration

$190,000 - $199,999
$180,000 - $189,999
$170,000 - $179,999
$Nil
Total numbers
Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons

2015
No.
1
0
0
10

2014
No.
0
0
1
12

11

13

$190,377

$170,150

Amounts relating to the Responsible Minister are reported in the Financial Statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.
Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
No related party transactions

-

-

-

-
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Note 20b Executive Officer Disclosures
Executive Officers' Remuneration
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting are shown in the first two
column in the table below in their relevant income bands.
Several factors affected total remuneration payable to executives over the year. A number of employment contracts were completed during the year and negotiable and a
There is no executive officer retired, resigned or retrenched during the year.

Total Remuneration

$110,000 - $119,999
$120,000 - $129,999
Total number of executives
Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE) (i)
Total Remuneration

2015
No.
0
1
1
1.0

2014
No.
0
1
1
1.0

$123,977

$121,314

Note (i) Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52 weeks for a reporting period.
Note 20c Payments to Other Personnel
The Queen Elizabeth Centre engaged contractors to perform the role of Business Manager from March 2014.
$20,000 - $29,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$40,000 - $49,999
Total Expenses (excluding GST)

2015

2014

No.
$

No.
$

0
1
1
$79,957

2
0
0
$51,761

2015
$

2014
$

$9,500

$9,600

Note 21: Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
There are no known events occurring after the balance sheet date that would impact the financial statements.
Note 22: Economic Dependency
The Queen Elizabeth Centre is wholly dependent on the continued financial support of the State Government.

Note 23:Remuneration of Auditors
The following table discloses the fees paid or payable for auditing of the financial statements and other internal audits.

Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit or review of financial statements

If the Financial Statements to this report are not included,
please view at www.qec.org.au or phone QEC on +61 3 9549 2777.

